
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

v.

TRACEY HOOK
CHARNISE CRAWFORD

:

:

:

:

:

:

CRIMINAL NO.   _______________

DATE FILED:      _______________

VIOLATIONS:
18 U.S.C. § 371 (conspiracy- 1 count) 
18 U.S.C. § 2119 (armed carjacking - 1
count)
18 U.S.C. § 924(c)(1) (using and carrying
a firearm during and in relation to a
crime of violence - 1 count)
18 U.S.C. § 2 (aiding and abetting)
Notice of forfeiture

INDICTMENT

COUNT ONE

THE GRAND JURY CHARGES THAT:

At all times relevant to this indictment: 

1. M.T., a person known to the grand jury, was the owner of a 2008 Chevrolet

Impala, vehicle identification number (“VIN”) 2G1WB58N789219534.

2. On or about August 25, 2011, in Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of

Pennsylvania, defendants

TRACEY HOOK and
CHARNISE CRAWFORD

conspired and agreed to take from the person and presence of another, by force, violence, and

intimidation, with intent to cause death and serious bodily harm, a motor vehicle, that is, a  2008

Chevrolet Impala, vehicle identification number (“VIN”) 2G1WB58N789219534, that had been

transported, shipped and received in interstate commerce.

MANNER AND MEANS



It was part of the conspiracy that:

3. Defendants TRACEY HOOK and CHARNISE CRAWFORD planned to carjack

M.T’s car, and to steal M.T’s money and personal property at gunpoint.

4. Defendant TRACEY HOOK brandished a handgun during the carjacking of

M.T’s car.

5. Defendant CHARNISE CRAWFORD acted as a lookout during the carjacking

and also ordered M.T. to give all his money to defendant TRACEY HOOK.

OVERT ACTS

In furtherance of the conspiracy and to accomplish its object, on or about August

25, 2011, defendants TRACEY HOOK and CHARNISE CRAWFORD committed the following

overt acts, among others, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania.

1. Defendant TRACEY HOOK accosted M.T., and pointed a loaded 9mm pistol at

M.T.’s head.

2. Defendant TRACEY HOOK demanded that M.T. surrender his wallet and

cellphone to the robbers. 

3. Defendant CHARNISE CRAWFORD ordered M.T. to give all of his money to

defendant TRACEY HOOK. 

4. Defendant CHARNISE CRAWFORD acted as a lookout and when she saw an

individual approaching the scene of the robbery, defendant CRAWFORD warned defendant

TRACEY HOOK and urged that they flee.

5. Defendant TRACEY HOOK demanded that M.T. surrender his car keys.
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6. Defendants TRACEY HOOK and CHARNISE CRAWFORD then fled the area in

M.T.’s car. 

7. Defendants TRACEY HOOK and CHARNISE CRAWFORD drove the stolen car

to a different section of Philadelphia.  

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371.

COUNT TWO
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THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

On or about August 25, 2011, in Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of

Pennsylvania, defendants

TRACEY HOOK and
CHARNISE CRAWFORD,

with intent to cause death and serious bodily harm, at gunpoint took, and aided and abetted the

taking, from the person and presence of M.T., a person known to the grand jury, by force,

violence and intimidation, a motor vehicle, that is, a 2008 Chevrolet Impala, vehicle

identification number (“VIN”) 2G1WB58N789219534, that had been transported, shipped, and

received in interstate commerce.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2119 and 2.
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COUNT THREE

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

On or about August 25, 2011, in Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of

Pennsylvania, defendants 

TRACEY HOOK and
CHARNISE CRAWFORD

knowingly used and carried and aided and abetted the use and carrying of a firearm, that is, a

Glock, model 17, 9mm semiautomatic pistol, serial number missing, loaded with 15 live rounds

of ammunition, during and in relation to a crime of violence for which they may be prosecuted in

a court of the United States, that is, armed carjacking, in violation of Title 18, United States

Code, Section 2119. 

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 924(c)(1).
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NOTICE OF FORFEITURE

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

As a result of the violations of Title 18, United States Code, Section 924(c), set

forth in this indictment, defendants 

TRACEY HOOK and
CHARNISE CRAWFORD

shall forfeit to the United States of America the firearm and ammunition involved in the

commission of this offense, including, but not limited to, a Glock, Model 17 9mm semiautomatic

pistol, serial number missing, and 15 live rounds of 9 mm ammunition.  

All pursuant to Title 28, United States Code, Section 2461(c), and Title 18,

United States Code, Section 924(d).

A TRUE BILL: 

                                                                
GRAND JURY FOREPERSON  

                                                                        
ZANE DAVID MEMEGER
United States Attorney
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